
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Application: Charter School of Inquiry 

John Sheffield - jsheffield@csicharter.org 
2021-2022 Annual Report 

Summary 

ID: 0000000241 
Last submitted: Nov 1 2022 02:57 PM (EDT) 
Labels: Board of Regents 

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is 
collected in a survey format within Annual Report portal. When entering information in the portal, some 
of the following items may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related 
items. 

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2021-2022 school year are not required 

to complete or submit an annual report this year). 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this 

cover page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2022) or you may 

not be assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 
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a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 800000083428 

a1. Popular School Name 

CSI 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2021) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2022 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks. 

BOARD OF REGENTS 

d. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

BUFFALO CITY SD 

e. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

8/2015 

f. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION 

8/2015 
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c. School Unionized 

Is your charter school unionized? 

Yes 

c. Name of Union 

Provide the name of the union: 

Charter School of Inquiry Union 

c. Date Unionized 

Provide the date of unionization: 

7/2017 

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Charter School of Inquiry promotes a safe and supportive community for children and families by 

infusing the heritage and culture of people of African descent, embracing the concept of Ubuntu and 

promoting academic growth through challenging student-led investigations. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only) 

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Briefly describe each Key Design Elements (KDE) as presented in the schools 

approved charter. KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the 

school’s mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. 

3 / 50 



	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

KDE 1 

KDE 2 

KDE 3 

KDE 4 

KDE 5 

Rigorous, Inquiry-based Curriculum 

Inquiry is the foundation of CSI’s instructional 
philosophy. Raising questions, conducting 

investigations, interpreting and communicating are 

how CSI children will learn. CSI will use compelling, 
and relevant interdisciplinary topics to foster 
children’s acquisition and retention of content 
knowledge, while fostering their creativity and 

critical thinking skills and a lifelong love of 
learning. Emphasis will be placed on firsthand 

investigations of their immediate surroundings as a 

way of infusing opportunities to learn from direct 
experience into all areas of the curriculum. 

Academic Focus on Literacy 

Recognizing that literacy is the foundation for 
success in school and in life, and that children 

must “learn to read” by 3rd grade in order to “read 

to learn” in subsequent grades, our academic focus 

is for every child at CSI to read proficiently, fluently 

and with good comprehension by the end of third 

grade. Intentional reading instruction will be based 

on scientifically-based reading research. 

Responsive Classroom (RC) 

Responsive Classroom is an evidence-based 

approach for elementary school teaching and 

learning that recognizes that the social curriculum 

is as important as the academic curriculum, that 
how children learn is as important as what they 

learn, and that the greatest cognitive growth 

occurs when children interact with others about 
what they have experienced. RC will help to build a 

culture of community and mutual respect. 

Collaborative Team-teaching 

Collaborative team-teaching takes place in every 

classroom with a combination of general 
education, special education, and intervention 

specialists working at every grade level. 

Data-driven Instruction and Evidence of 

4 / 50 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

Performance 

This is instituted through progress monitoring in 

reading, literacy, math and science to inform 

responsive instruction, and to create IIP’s for each 

child. Rubrics, student portfolios, performance 

tasks and projects for evaluating multidisciplinary 

thematic units are also utilized as evidence of 
student work and progress. 

KDE 6 African and African-American History and Culture 

CSI founders feel strongly that African American 

children, and indeed all children, need to gain a 

better understanding of African and African-
American peoples – their history, culture, and 

contributions to the world. This knowledge is 

necessary to contest images in the dominant 
culture that breed feelings of inadequacy and a 

diminished sense of self-worth in many African 

American children, and will give all of CSI’s children 

perspectives that they do not ordinarily get. 

KDE 7 Integrated Arts 

Integrated arts will help students to learn the 

disciplines of visual arts and music and explore 

their personal involvement in an extended-day 

enrichment program. Creating, interpreting, and 

responding in the arts stimulates the imagination 

and encourages innovation and creative risk-taking 

in children. 

KDE 8 (No response) 

KDE 9 (No response) 

KDE 10 (No response) 

Need additional space for variables 

No 
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344 

292 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

www.csicharter.org 

i. Total Approved Charter Enrollment for 2021-2022 School Year (exclude Pre-K program 

enrollment) 

j. Total Enrollment on June 30, 2022 (exclude Pre-K program enrollment) 

k. Grades Served during the 2021-2022 School Year (exclude Pre-K program students) 

Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

No 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 
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m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2022-2023? 

No, just one site. 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 800000083428 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical 
Address 

Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be 

Served at Site 

for coming 

year (K-5, 6-9, 
etc.) 

Receives 

Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades 

(If yes, enter 
the appropriate 

grades. If no, 
enter No). 

404 Edision 

Street, Buffalo, 
NY, 14215 

(716) 833-3250 Buffalo K-6 No Site 1 
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report 

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired 

certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in 

district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of 

occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on 

or after July 1, 2021. 

Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year 

2022-2023, the fire inspection certificate must be dated after July 1, 2021. 

If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the 

Annual Report, please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on 

November 1, 2022. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

certificate of occupancy 22.23.pdf 

Filename: certificate of occupancy 22.23.pdf Size: 164.0 kB 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

CSI Safety report 4.26.22.pdf 

Filename: CSI Safety report 4.26.22.pdf Size: 161.5 kB 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2021-2022 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2021-2022 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions). 

Yes 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select Specific Revision Date Approved by Date Approved by 

9 / 50 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	

	
	

	
	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	
	 	

2 

3 

Best Description) (150 word limit) BOT (if applicable) Authorizer (if 
applicable) 

1 
Change in 

complaint policy 

A parent(s) can 

bypass the Head of 
School (HOS) and 

make their 
complaint directly 

to the Board of 
Trustees 

11/10/21 11/22/21 

Change in Bylaws 

Change in 

discipline or code 

of conduct policy 

Bylaws and 

Complaint Policy 

make it clear that 
complaints may be 

made directly to 

the Board of 
Trustees 

Explicitly state the 

following: The 

School will provide 

written notice of 
short-term 

suspensions; The 

school will provide 

due process prior 
to imposing long-
term suspension 

with remote 

instruction as a 

disciplinary 

measure; The 

school will 
immediately return 

to school any 

student whose 

behavior is 

determined to be a 

manifestation of a 

disability 

11/10/21 11/22/21 

11/10/21 11/22/21 

Key Design 

Elements --
Required by SED 
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4 Other 

Legal Counsel 

To amend the Key 

Design Elements 

From: 
"Inspired school 
leadership; Highly 

effective 

teachers; asset-
based model of 
parent 
involvement; 
Literacy coaching; 
Responsive 

classroom; Meet 
enrollment/retentio 

n targets for 
special needs 

children; African-
American history 

infused; Using data 

to differentiate 

instruction; 
Extended school 
day and school 
year; Health and 

wellness; and 

Professional 
development/com 

mon planning 

time." To 

"Rigorous inquiry-
based curriculum; 
Academic 

focus on literacy; 
Responsive 

Classroom; 
Collaborative team 

teaching; Data-
driven 

instruction and 

evidence of 
performance; 
African 

and 

09/2/21 
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5 

African/American 

history and 

culture; and 

Integrated arts." 

More revisions to add? 

No 

o. Has your school's Board of Trustee's approved a budget for the 2021-2022 FY? 

Yes 

ATTESTATIONS 

p. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. (To write type in a phone 

number with an extension, please use this format: 123-456-7890-3. The dash and number 3 at 

the end of the phone number refers to the individual's phone extension. Do not type in the 

work extension or the abbreviation for it - just the dash and the extension number after the 

phone number). 

Name John Sheffield 

Position Head of School 

Phone/Extension 716-833-3250 

Email jsheffield@csicharter.org 

12 / 50 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) 

below attest that our school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee 

clearance and fingerprint requirements as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO 

Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click YES to agree. 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 

q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) 

below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this 

charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, 

State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in any part 

of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds 

for the revocation of our charter. Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the 

stylus on your mobile device to sign your name). 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

13 / 50 



	 	

	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		 	 	 	 	 			

Date 

Jul 26 2022 

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 

Completed Oct 28 2022 

Instructions 
Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and 
Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward 
Charter Goals as per their currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2022. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is
marked optional for administrative purposes only. 
Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved 

charter, and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all 
goals no later than November 2, 2022. 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 800000083428 
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1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and 

Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward 

Charter Goals as per their currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2022. 

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

ELA Absolute 

Measure 

Each year, 50% of 
students enrolled Academic Goal 1 for at least two 

Measure Used to Goal - Met, Not 
Evaluate Progress Met or Unable to 

Toward Attainment Assess 

of Goal 

NYS ELA Not Met assessments 

If not met, 
describe efforts 

the school will take 

to meet goal. If 
unable to assess 

goal, type N/A for 
Not Applicable 

The 2021-2022 

state assessment 
data will be used 

as a post-
pandemic 

baseline, after two 

years of no or 
unreliable data. 

In an Action Plan 

submitted to the 

NYS Education 

Department, CSI 
set a goal for the 

2022-2023 school 
year stating that 
the percentage of 
students scoring at 
or above 

proficiency on the 

2022-2023 NYS 

assessments will 

15 / 50 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	

	

	 	
	 	
	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	

	
	

	
	

	 	
	 	

Academic Goal 2 

Academic Goal 3 

years at CSI will 
score at least at a 

Level 3 on NYS ELA 

assessments. 

ELA Comparative 

Measure 

Each year, the 

percentage of 
students enrolled 

for at least two 

years at CSI will 
score at least 10% 

above BPS 

students in the 

same grades 3 

through 6 on NYS 

ELA assessments. 

ELA Growth 

Measure 

Students in grade 

kindergarten 

through second 

will demonstrate 

attainment of 
age/grade level 

BPS data by grade-NYS ELA Unable to Assess level has not been assessments released publicly. 

Star and Fountas 

and Pinnell reading Met 
assessments. 

increase by 10% 

from the 2021-
2022 baseline. 

CSI is using scaled 

scores and line-
item analysis to 

address post-
pandemic learning 

losses. 

In 2021-2022, CSI 
transitioned to a 

co-teaching model. 
Line-item analysis 

for each student is 

being used to 

better differentiate 

instruction. 

16 / 50 



	 	

	 	
	

	

	 	

	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	
	

	
	 	

	
	

	
	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	

	

	 	
	

proficiency 

benchmarks on the 

appropriate grade 

level assessment. 

Academic Goal 4 

Academic Goal 5 

Academic Goal 6 

ELA Growth 

Measure 

All grade levels 

wills demonstrate 

an increase of 
three or more 

reading levels 

between 

September and 

June on the 

Fountas and 

Pinnell reading 

assessment. 

ELA Growth 

Measure 

80% of students 

will meet their end 

of the year targets 

as generated by 

the Star reading 

assessments. 

ELA Growth 

Measure 

All grade levels will 
meet or exceed 

end of year targets 

generated by Star 
reading 

assessments. 

Fountas and 

Pinnell reading Met 
assessment 

Star reading Met assessment 

Star reading Met assessment 

ELA Growth 

Measure 

The percentage of 
students meeting 

17 / 50 



	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	

	 	

	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	

	
	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	

	

	 	
	 	
	

or exceeding 
Academic Goal 7 grade-level 

reading standards 

will increase by 

15% annually as 

measured by the 

Star reading 

assessments. 

Math Absolute 

Measure 

Each year, 50% of 
students enrolled 

Academic Goal 8 for at least two 

years at CSI will 
score at least at a 

Level 3 on NYS 

math assessments. 

Star reading 

assessments 
Met 

Not Met 

The 2021-2022 

state assessment 
data will be used 

as a post-
pandemic 

baseline, after two 

years of no or 
unreliable data. 

In an Action Plan 

submitted to the 

NYS Education 

Department, CSI 
set a goal for the 

2022-2023 school 
year stating that 
the percentage of 
students scoring at 
or above 

proficiency on the 

2022-2023 NYS 

assessments will 
increase by 10% 

from the 2021-
2022 baseline. 

CSI is using scaled 

scores and line-
item analysis to 

address post-
pandemic learning 

losses. 

In 2021-2022, CSI 
transitioned to a 

co-teaching model. 

18 / 50 



	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	

	
	

	
	

	 	
	

	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Line-item analysis 

for each student is 

being used to 

better differentiate 

instruction. 

Academic Goal 9 

Academic Goal 10 

Math Comparative 

Measure 

Each year, the 

percentage of 
students enrolled 

for at least two 

years at CSI will 
score at least 10% 

above BPS 

students in the 

same grades 3 

through 6 on NYS 

math assessments. 

Math Growth 

Measure 

Students in grade 

kindergarten 

through second 

will demonstrate 

attainment of 
age/grade level 
proficiency 

benchmarks on the 

appropriate grade 

level assessment. 

BPS data by grade-
Unable to Assess level has not been 

released publicly. 

Star math Met assessments 

2. Do have more academic goals to add? 

Yes 

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal - Met, Not 2019-2020 

19 / 50 



	 	

	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	
	

	
	

	
	 	
	
	 	

	

	

	
	
	 	 	

Performance Goal Evaluate Progress Met or Unable to progress toward 

Toward Attainment Assess attainment of goal 
of Goal Met/Not 

Met/Unable to 

Assess During Due 

to Closure 

Math Growth 

Measure 

80% of students Star math Academic Goal 11 will meet their end Met assessments of the year targets 

as generated by 

the Star math 

assessments. 

Math Growth 

Measure 

All grade levels will Star math Academic Goal 12 meet or exceed Met assessment end of the year 
targets generated 

by Star math 

assessments. 

Math Growth 

Measure 

The percentage of 
students meeting 

or exceeding 
Star math grade-level math Academic Goal 13 Met assessments standards will 

increase by 15% 

annually as 

measured by the 

Star Math 

assessments. 

The 2021-2022 

state assessment 
data will be used 

20 / 50 



	 	

	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	

	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

Academic Goal 14 

Academic Goal 15 

Academic Goal 16 

Academic Goal 17 

Academic Goal 18 

Academic Goal 19 

Academic Goal 20 

Science Absolute 

Measure 

In grade 4, 75% of 
all students 

enrolled for at 
least two years at 
CSI will perform at 
or above Level 3 

on the NYS 

assessment. 

Science 

Comparative 

Measure 

In grade 4, the 

percent of all 
students in at least 
their second year 
at CSI will exceed 

by 15% BPS 

student 
performance. 

Not Met 

Unable to Assess 

as a post-
pandemic 

baseline, after two 

years of no or 
unreliable data. 

CSI is using scaled 

scores and line-
item analysis to 

address post-
pandemic learning 

losses. 

CSI is working with 

Erie 1 BOCES to 

ensure that our 
curriculum is fully 

aligned with the 

new science 

standards and the 

shift to the fifth-
grade assessment 
in 2024. 
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3. Do have more academic goals to add? 

No 

4. ORGANIZATION GOALS 

For the 2021-2022 school year, any organization
goals that cannot be evaluated due to school closure
resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing, 
surveying, and other usual practices should be 
reported as “N/A”. 

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Organization Goals 

Organizational 
Goal 

Org Goal 1 N/A 

Org Goal 2 

Org Goal 3 

Org Goal 4 

Org Goal 5 

Org Goal 6 

Org Goal 7 

Org Goal 8 

Org Goal 9 

Org Goal 10 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Goal - Met, Not 
Met, or Unable to 

Assess 

If not met, 
describe efforts 

the school will take 

to meet goal. If 
unable to assess 

goal, type N/A for 
Not Applicable 
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Org Goal 11 

Org Goal 12 

Org Goal 13 

Org Goal 14 

Org Goal 15 

Org Goal 16 

Org Goal 17 

Org Goal 18 

Org Goal 19 

Org Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational goals to add? 

No 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2021-2022 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals 

Financial Goal 1 N/A 

Financial Goal 2 

Financial Goal 3 

Financial Goal 4 

Financial Goal 5 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Goal - Met, Not 
Met, or Partially 

Met 

If not met, 
describe efforts 

the school will take 

to meet goal. 
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7. Do have more financial goals to add? 

No 

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Accountability Plan Progress Reports 

Incomplete Hidden from applicant 

Instructions 
SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY- Complete Template and Upload to Epicenter 

SUNY-authorized charter schools must download an Accountability Plan Progress Report template at 
Accountability Plan Progress Report. After completing, SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the 
document into the SUNY Epicenter system by September 15, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED 
CSO. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements 

Completed Nov 1 2022 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements and related documents in 
PDF format into the SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to 
NYSED CSO. SUNY-authorized charter schools are asked to ensure that security features such as 
password protection are turned off. 

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools must upload final, audited 
financial statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2022. Upload the 
independent auditor’s report, any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as 
one submission, combined into a PDF file, ensuring that security features such as password protections 
are removed from all school uploaded documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as visible and optional task in the online portal until August 1 
2022 but will be identified as a required task thereafter and due on November 1, 2022. This is a 
required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

CSI - audited FS 06 

Filename: CSI audited FS 06.30.2022 FINAL.pdf Size: 787.0 kB 

Entry 4a – Audited Financial Report Template (SUNY) 
Incomplete Hidden from applicant 
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Instructions - SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

SUNY-authorized schools must download the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Report 
Template” at http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal/. After completing, schools must upload the 
document into the SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2022. SUNY CSI will forward to 
NYSED CSO. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

Entry 4b – Audited Financial Report Template (BOR/NYC/BOE) 
Completed Nov 1 2022 

Instructions - Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Regents-authorized schools must download and complete the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited 
Financial Report Template” from the online portal or the 2021-2022 Annual Reports webpage. Upload the 
completed file in Excel format and submit by November 1, 2022. 

EDUCATION CORPORATIONS WITH MORE THAN ONE SCHOOL SHOULD COMPLETE THE 
EXCEL SPREADSHEET FOR THE EDUCATION CORPORATION AS A WHOLE, NOT FOR THE 
INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS. PLEASE SUBMIT THE SAME EXCEL SPREADSHEET FOR EACH OF 
THE SCHOOLS. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

CSI auditedfinancialreporttemplate-nysed 06 

Filename: CSI auditedfinancialreporttemplat LLN2T0K.xlsx Size: 76.7 kB 

Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents 

Completed Oct 30 2022 

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial 
documents and submit by November 1, 2022. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an 
explanation if not applicable or available. For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because 
the school did not expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 Threshold.” 

1. Advisory and/or Management letter 
2. Federal Single Audit 
3. CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report 
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1] 
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations 

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per 
school is $100,000. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

CSI NYSED Annual Report 11 

Filename: CSI NYSED Annual Report 11.1.2022 xSejvmL.pdf Size: 145.6 kB 
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Entry 4c - Dissolution Reserve 

Filename: Entry 4c Dissolution Reserve.pdf Size: 37.2 kB 

Entry 4d - Financial Services Contact Information 

Completed Oct 24 2022 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter financial contact information 
directly into the form within the portal by November 1, 2022. 

Form for "Financial Services Contact Information" 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal 
Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone 

Lynn Monin lmonin@csicharter.org 716-833-3250 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit 
Contact Name 

School Audit 
Contact Email 

School Audit 
Contact Phone 

Peter DeSabio, 
Lumsden and 

McCormick 

Years Working With 

This Audit Firm 

7 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial 

services firm. 

26 / 50 

Firm Name Contact 
Person 

Mailing 

Address 

Email Phone Years With 

Firm 

Kirisits and 

Associates 

Karen 

Burhans 

1231 

Delaware 

Ave., Suite 6, 
Buffalo, NY, 
14209 

7 

mailto:lmonin@csicharter.org


	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Entry 5 – Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget 
Completed Oct 30 2022 

SUNY-authorized charter schools should download the 2022-23 Budget and Quarterly Report 
Template and the 2022-23 Budget Narrative Questionnaire from the SUNY website and upload the 
completed template into Epicenter. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED CSO. Due November 1, 2022. 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a copy of the 
school’s FY22 Budget using the 2022-2023 Budget Template in the portal or from the Annual Report 
website. Due November 1, 2022. 

The assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-
explanatory. Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that 
indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable 
page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

CSI final-2022-2023-budget 

Filename: CSI final 2022 2023 budget.xlsx Size: 37.0 kB 

Entry 6 – Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest 
Form 

Completed Jul 30 2022 

Due on August 1, 2022, each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter 
school education corporation governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2021-2022 
school year must complete and sign a Trustee Disclosure of Financial Interest Form. Acceptable signature 
formats include: 

Digitally certified PDF signature (i.e., DocuSign) 
Manual signature (1. download to print, 2. manually sign, 3. scan signed document to PDF, and 4. 
upload into portal) 

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. The 
education corporation is responsible for completing the form for trustees who left the board 
during the reporting year. 

Forms completed from past years will not be accepted. Only the latest version of the form (updated in 
April, 2022) is acceptable.). 

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to 
complete a separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Disclosure 
of Financial Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the 
governing education corporation. 

Financial Disclosures ALL 2022 7-29-22 

Filename: Financial Disclosures ALL 2022 7 29 22.pdf Size: 645.2 kB 

Entry 7 BOT Membership Table 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Peter Secretar 
Dow y 

Richard Treasure 

Haydon r 

Nichelle Parent 
Gray Rep 

Melvin Trustee/ Bankhe Member ad 

Janet Trustee/ 
Peters Member 

Latise Trustee/ 
Hairston Member 

Eric Trustee/ Campbe Member ll 

Academ 

ic 

Academ 

ic 

Commit 
tee 

Finance/ 
Audit 
Commit 
tee 

Finance/ 
Audit, 
Academ 

ic 

N/A 

Governa 

nce 

Commit 
tee 

Governa 

nce 

Academ 

ic 

Commit 
tee, 
Governa 

nce 

Commit 
tee 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

3 

2 

2 

2 

2 

1 

1 

07/08/2 

020 

07/08/2 

020 

07/07/2 

021 

07/05/2 

022 

07/08/2 

020 

07/08/2 

020 

07/06/2 

022 

07/11/2 

023 

07/11/2 

023 

07/11/2 

024 

07/08/2 

025 

07/11/2 

023 

07/11/2 

023 

07/08/2 

025 

12 

11 

7 

7 

11 

5 or less 

5 or less 
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12 

1a. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees? 

No 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to 

all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2022 

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2021-
2022 

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during 

2021-2022 

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws, 
Resolution or Minutes 

8 

1 

2 

9 

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2021-2022 

4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2022-2023 

Total number of Voting Members on June 30, 2022: 

30 / 50 

12 

8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

1 

2 

9 

0 

0 

0 

Total number of Voting Members added during the 2021-2022 school year: 

Total number of Voting Members who departed during the 2021-2022 school year: 

Total Maximum Number of Voting members in 2021-2022, as set by the board in bylaws, 

resolution, or minutes: 

Total number of Non-Voting Members on June 30, 2022: 

Total number of Non-Voting Members added during the 2021-2022 school year: 

Total number of Non-Voting Members who departed during the 2021-2022 school year: 
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0 

3 

Total Maximum Number of Non-Voting members in 2021-2022, as set by the board in bylaws, 

resolution or minutes: 

Board members attending 8 or fewer meetings during 2021-2022 

Thank you. 

Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY 

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2021-June 2022), which 
should match the number of meetings held during the 2021-2022 school year, as indicated in the above 
table. The minutes provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and 
may be uploaded individually or as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted 
by August 1, 2022. 

Board Meeting Minutes 7-21 through 6-22 

Filename: Board Meeting Minutes 7 21 through 6 22.pdf Size: 1.3 MB 

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention 

Completed Aug 1 2022 

Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts 
Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Describe the good faith efforts the charter school has made in 2021-2022 toward meeting targets to 
attract and retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities (SWDs), English Language Learners 
(ELLs), and students who are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for 
meeting or making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2022-2023. 

Entry 9 Enrollment and Retention of Special
Populations 

32 / 50 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Economically Disadvantaged 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 

2021-2022 

The Charter School of Inquiry has 

been successful in attracting and 

retaining economically 

disadvantaged students. 

The percentage of economically 

disadvantaged students at CSI 
exceeds the percentage of ED 

students in BPS. 

CSI recruits from this 

demographic by being visibly 

active in the community. This 

includes participation in local 
health fairs, recruitment fairs, 
backpack-giveaways, opening 

the campus to community 

meetings, and running a Girl 
Scout Troop for the 

neighborhood. 

CSI targets social media ads to 

this this demographic, as well as 

running ads in community papers 

such as the Challenger. 

Advertising focuses on the free 

transportation, free breakfast 
and lunch, and a free extended 

day program. 

CSI joined SchoolMint to simplify 

the application process for all 
families and expand parents' 
choice. 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 

2022-2023 

-CSI will continue to be a visible 

presence on the Eastside of 
Buffalo by continuing to work 

with our community partners, 
opening our facility to 

neighborhood organizations, and 

participating in local events. 

-CSI intends to retain the 

important role of recruitment 
coordinator to facilitate outreach 

to target subgroups by meeting 

personally with directors of pre-
school programs and providing 

in-person tours of the school. 

-CSI intends to continue to recruit 
through SchoolMint to simplify 

the application process for all 
families and expand parents' 
choice. 

This is the fastest growing 

subgroup at CSI, nearly doubling 

from the previous year as a 

33 / 50 



	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

English Language Learners 

result of our innovative 

requirement strategies. 

-In the 2021-2022 school year, 
CSI engaged the services of the 

International Institute to provide 

our staff with training on the 

Bengali culture (the largest group 

entering the school). An outcome 

of the training led to the creation 

of a designated space in the 

school to accommodate students 

who observed the required 

prayer times of Islam. 

-CSI hired a multi-lingual Bengali 
recruiter who reaches out to 

families in their native 

languages. The recruiter is 

actively involved in the Bengali 
community and recruits at 
Bengali community centers and 

events. 

-CSI retains staff members fluent 
in Spanish to assist with 

recruitment. 

-CSI participated in several 
podcasts on Buffalo Bangla to 

inform families of the programs 

and services that the school 
provides English language 

learners. 

-CSI invited Bengali families into 

the school for a potluck luncheon 

and the opportunity to learn 

more about the school and the 

programs that we offer to English 

language learners and their 
families. 

-Recruitment materials are 

disseminated in Spanish and 

CSI's recruitment efforts for this 

subgroup are meeting with great 
success, and the school will 
continue its initiatives. 

-CSI will continue to rely on the 

International Institute to provide 

training to staff on the Bengali 
culture, and other cultures as 

needed. 

-CSI will retain multi-lingual 
recruiters to reach out to families 

in their native language. 

-CSI will continue to participate in 

Buffalo Bangla podcasts. 

-Social media ads will be 

targeted toward this 

demographic. 

-CSI will continue to plan events 

to bring immigrant and refugee 

families into the school to learn 

about our programs and services. 

-Recruitment and retention 

reports will be made monthly to 

the board of trustees. 

-CSI will continue the weighted 

lottery giving preference to this 

subgroup. 

34 / 50 



	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Bengali. 

-Tours of the school are provided 

in families'	 native language. 

-Translators are provided to 

assist families with the 

application and registration 

process. 

-CSI added a weighted lottery to 

give preference to English 

language learners in the 

application process. 

-Social media ads are targeted 

toward this demographic. 

-Reports are made monthly to 

the board of trustees on 

recruitment and retention efforts. 

Over the past four years, CSI has 

increased the investment of 
resources into creating a 

program that would be attractive 

to prospective families who have 

one or more disabled children. 

-Instituted a weighted lottery 

that gives preference to this 

subgroup. 

-Referenced special education 

services offered by CSI in 

recruitment materials. 

-Recruited through SchoolMint to 

inform parents of our weighted 

lottery and simplify the 

application process. 

-Recruitment materials will be 

disseminated in Spanish and 

Bengali. 

-Tours of the school will be 

provided to families in their 
native language 

-Translators will assist families 

with the application and 

registration process. 

-Continue the weighted lottery 

that gives preference to this 

subgroup. 

-Publicize the weighted 

preference for this subgroup. 

-Continue to reference special 
education services offered by CSI 
in recruitment materials. 

-Continue to recruit through 

SchoolMint to inform parents of 
our weighted lottery and simplify 

the application process. 

-Disseminate recruitment 
materials at pre-schools that 
serve a high percentage of 

35 / 50 



	 	

	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	

Students with Disabilities 

-Disseminated recruitment 
materials at pre-schools that 
serve a high percentage of 
students with disabilities. 

-Provided parents with 

information on their rights when 

going through the referral 
process and understanding the 

role of the CSE. 

-Provided parents with 

information on how to engage 

the support of a parent advocate 

when going through the referral 
process. 

-Ensured that progress 

monitoring data points were fully 

aligned to the requirements of 
the Buffalo CSE. 

-Ensured that progress 

monitoring assessments were 

approved by the Buffalo CSE. 

SWDS. 

-Provide parents with information 

on their rights when when going 

through the referral process and 

and understanding the role of the 

CSE. 

-Provide parents with information 

on how to engage the support of 
a parent advocate when going 

through the referral process. 

-Continue to ensure that progress 

monitoring data points are fully 

aligned to the requirements of 
the Buffalo CSE. 

-Continue to ensure that progress 

monitoring assessments are 

approved by the Buffalo CSE. 

-Provide speakers for parent 
groups on the referral process 

and their parental rights. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 

2021-2022 

The Charter School of Inquiry has 

been successful in attracting and 

retaining economically 

disadvantaged students. 

The percentage of economically 

disadvantaged students at CSI 
exceeds the percentage of 
economically disadvantaged 

students in BPS. 

-One-to-one computer initiative 

36 / 50 

Describe Retention Plans in 

2022-2023 

-Maintain the one-to-one 

computer initiative ensuring that 
each student in the school has 

his/her own Chromebook for use 

in school and at home. 

-Continue the extended day 



	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

Economically Disadvantaged 

ensuring that each student in the 

school has his/her own 

Chromebook for use in school 
and at home. 

-Resumed an extended day 

program at no cost to families. 

-Offered a free summer 
enrichment program with free 

breakfast open to all CSI 
students. 

-Increased support to students in 

ELA and math by transitioning to 

a co-teaching model (two 

certified teachers in every 

classroom). 

-Free lunch and breakfast 
program for all students during 

the regular school day. 

-Free transportation to all parts of 
the city. 

-Junior Achievement programs 

offered to students on campus. 

-Partnered with Delta Sigma 

Theta Sorority and Afro-American 

Police Association to provide 

extra-curricular programs for 
students. 

-Partnered with the Afro-
American Police Association to 

expand mentoring opportunities 

for students. 

-Brought in speakers from the 

wider community to educate 

students on social and civic 

issues. 

program at no cost to families. 

-Continue to offer a free summer 
enrichment program with free 

breakfast and lunch. 

-Continue the increased support 
to students in ELA and math by 

refining the use of school-
adopted co-teaching models (two 

certified teachers in every 

classroom). 

-Continue to provide free lunch 

and breakfast for all students 

during the regular school day. 

-Continue to offer transportation 

to all parts of the city. 

-Continue to partner with Junior 
Achievement to offer programs 

to students on campus. 

-Continue partnership with Delta 

Sigma Theta Sorority and Afro-
American Police Association to 

provide extra-curricular programs 

for students. 

-Continue partnership with the 

Afro-American Police Association 

to expand mentoring 

opportunities for students. 

-Continue to bring in speakers 

from the wider community to 

educate students on social and 

civic issues. 

-Continue to provide training for 
all teachers on trauma-sensitive 

classrooms, crisis intervention, 
and effects of poverty. 
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-Continued to provide training for 
all teachers on trauma-sensitive 

classrooms, crisis intervention, 
and effects of poverty. 

-Added a school counselor to our 
student support team. 

-Resumed field trips throughout 
the year at no cost to families. 

-Provided students with free 

uniforms and school supplies 

when necessary. 

-Created the new position of 
Director of Family Support to 

provide more outreach to 

families and link families to vital 
social, economic, and emotional 
support services. 

-Partnered with Greater Faith 

Bible Tabernacle Church and 

Eastgate Recovery Church to link 

families to vital legal, housing, 
health, and nutritional support 
services. 

-Launched the Russell Bell 
Academy to provide greater 
learning opportunities, social 
emotional support, and character 
education for students. 

-Created a model where there is 

one certified RtI specialist at 
each grade level. 

-Continue to provide field trips 

throughout the year at no cost to 

families. 

-Continue to provide students 

with free uniforms and school 
supplies when necessary. 

-Retain the position of Director of 
Family Support to provide more 

outreach to families and link 

families to vital social, economic, 
and emotional support services. 

-Continue partnership with 

Greater Faith Bible Tabernacle 

Church and Eastgate Recovery 

Church to link families to vital 
legal, housing, health, and 

nutritional support services. 

-Resume after-school and 

weekend extra curricular 
activities (if permitted by Health 

Department). 

-Expand the Russell Bell 
Academy to provide more 

opportunities for parents and 

guardians. 

-Continue to cultivate the model 
of one RtI specialist at each 

grade level. 

-Continue to provide training to 

all staff members on Bengali The largest number of English 
culture and other cultures as language learners entering CSI 
needed. are of Bengali origin. The school 
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English Language Learners 

has made outstanding efforts to 

create a welcoming community 

for these students and their 
families by creating culturally 

sensitive classrooms. 

-Provided training to all staff 
members on Bengali culture. 

-Designated a space for students 

to fulfill prayer mandates of the 

Muslim religion. 

-Ensured that the cafeteria 

offered lunches that meet the 

religious dietary requirements of 
all students. 

-Retained a full-time Bengali staff 
member to serve as a liaison 

between the school and Bengali 
families. 

-Hired Spanish speaking staff 
members to provide translation 

services when necessary. 

-Ensured that all school 
documents were translated into 

Bengali and Spanish. 

-Provided internal translation 

services to families. 

-Provided native language 

support to families when 

applying to the school or 
registering their children. 

-Acknowledged Bengali holidays 

and festivals. 

-Facilitated a Bengali Cultural 
Day where Bengali families were 

able to share their culture and 

-Maintain a designated space for 
students to fulfill prayer 
mandates of the Muslim religion. 

-Continue to ensure that the 

cafeteria offers lunches that 
meet the religious dietary 

requirements of all students. 

-Retain a full-time Bengali staff 
member to serve as a liaison 

between the school and Bengali 
families. 

-Retain Spanish speaking staff 
members to provide translation 

services when necessary. 

-Continue to ensure that all 
school documents are translated 

into Bengali and Spanish. 

-Continue to provide translation 

services to families within the 

school. 

-Continue to provide native 

language support to families 

when applying to the school or 
registering their children. 

-Continue to acknowledge 

Bengali holidays and festivals. 

-Expand on Bengali Cultural Day 

where Bengali families are able 

to share their culture and food 

with each other and CSI staff. 

-Provide more opportunities for 
Bengali families to comfortably 

socialize in the school. 

-Continue to include Bengali 
songs and music in the 
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food with each other and CSI 
staff. 

-Provided opportunities for 
Bengali families to comfortably 

socialize in the school. 

-Introduced Bengali songs and 

music into the curriculum. 

-Introduced Bengali culture into 

the curriculum. 

-Utilized ENL teacher as a 

resource for general education 

teachers to promote strategies to 

teach Language Arts to English 

language learners. 

-Utilized ENL teacher as a 

resource to assist teachers in 

creating culturally sensitive 

classroom environments for 
immigrant and refugee students 

and their families. 

-Continued to cultivate an ENL 

program that includes both a 

Language Arts instructional 
component and content area 

instructional support. 

-Transitioned to a co-teaching 

model with one general 
education teacher and one 

special education teacher 
working collaboratively in the 

classroom. 

curriculum. 

-Continue to include Bengali 
culture in the curriculum. 

-Continue to utilize ENL teacher 
as a resource for general 
education teachers to promote 

strategies to teach Language 

Arts to English language 

learners. 

-Continue to utilize ENL teacher 
as a resource to assist teachers 

in creating culturally sensitive 

classroom environments program 

for immigrant and refugee 

students and and their families. 

-Continue to cultivate an ENL 

program that includes both a 

Language Arts instructional 
component and content area 

instructional support. 

-If necessary, hire an additional 
ENL teacher. 

-If possible, hire a bilingual co-
teacher for kindergarten to 

accommodate students and their 
families upon entry into the 

school. 

-Continue to support the 

transition to the co-teaching 

model with one general 
education teacher and one 

special education teacher 
working collaboratively in the 

classroom. 

-Continue to provide professional 
development to teachers on 

effective co-teaching models. 
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Students with Disabilities 

-Increased the amount of service 

hours by transitioning to the co-
teaching model with a special 
education teacher in the 

classroom all day. 

-Continued the contract with 

Buffalo Hearing and Speech to 

provide all related services. 

-Provided support to general 
education teachers to ensure 

that they were fully 

knowledgeable about the needs 

of students with disabilities. 

-Increased Director of Special 
Education position from 10-
months to 12-months. 

-Put the Director of Special 
Education in a position to 

oversee RtI services to ensure 

continuity with the special 
education program. 

-Worked closely with the Director 
of Special Education to develop a 

master schedule that best met 
the needs of students with 

disabilities. 

-Reconfigured the Multi-tiered 

System of Supports Team (MTSS 

formerly SST) to include more 

behavioral intervention 

specialists, which resulted in an 

overall reduction in suspensions 

and no suspensions of students 

with disabilities. 

-Increased push-in services of 
behavioral intervention 

specialists. 

-Maintain the increased amount 
of service hours created by the 

transition to the co-teaching 

model with a special education 

teacher in the classroom all day. 

-After careful evaluation , the 

school has decided to continue 

the contract with Buffalo Hearing 

and Speech to provide all related 

services. 

-Continue to have the Director of 
Special Education support 
general education teachers to 

ensure that they are fully 

knowledgeable about the needs 

of students with disabilities. 

-Retain the Director of Special 
Education position as 12-month 

employee and have him continue 

to oversee the delivery of RtI 
services. 

-Continue to include the Director 
of Special Education in the 

develop the master schedule to 

ensure that it meets the needs of 
students with disabilities. 

-Continue to include more 

behavioral intervention 

specialists as standing members 

of the MTSS Team (formerly SST). 

-Continue push-in services of 
behavioral intervention 

specialists. 

-Transition a veteran special 
education teacher to a mentor 
role to work alongside of the 

Director of Special Education to 
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provide ongoing support to 

special education teachers. 

Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Form for "Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator
Attrition" Revised to Employee Fingerprint
Requirements Attestation 

A. TEACH System – Employee Clearance 

Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office 

of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes 

paraprofessionals and other school personnel who are provided or assigned by the district of 

location, or related/contracted service providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are 

required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all students, 
charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of individuals who have been 

denied clearance. Once the employees have been terminated, the school must terminate the request for 
clearance in the TEACH system. 

In the Annual Report, charter schools are asked to confirm that all employees have been cleared through 

the NYSED TEACH system; and, if denied clearance, confirm that the individual or employee has been 

removed from the TEACH system, and is not employed by the school. 

[1] Employees who must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors, 
security personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school 
building. This includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or 

assigned by the district of location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED 

memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-
schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf or visit the NYSED website at: 
http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html for more information regarding who 

must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2. 
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B. Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for 
prospective employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the 

school’s emergency conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school 
receives notification from NYSED regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all 
prospective employees through the NYSED TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is 

submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours 

after approval by the board. 

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency 

conditional clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal. 

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information 

can be found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo 10-2019. 

Attestation 

Responses Selected: 

I hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements. 

Entry 11 Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

Completed Jul 28 2022 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New 
York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified teachers are those 
not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of 
Education. 

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column. For example, a school 
with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

Entry 11 Uncertified Teachers 

School Name: 
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Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified
Teachers 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance 

with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified 

teachers are those not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established 

by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count 

of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time 

teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

If more than one line applies to a teacher, please include in only one FTE uncertified category. Please do 

not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

CATEGORY A. 30% OR 5 UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS WHICHEVER IS LESS 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2022) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2022) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2022) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2022) 

Total Category A: 5 or 30% whichever is less 

FTE Count 

2 

0 

0 

0 

2.0 
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CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER 

SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION. 

FTE Count 

i. Mathematics 0 

ii. Science 0 

iii. Computer Science 0 

iv. Technology 0 

v. Career and Technical Education 0 

Total Category B: not to exceed 5 0.0 

CATEGORY C: PLUS 5 ADDITIONAL UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2022) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2022) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2022) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2022) 

Total Category C: not to exceed 5 

FTE Count 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0.0 
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22 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Upload the 2021-2022 Organization Chart. The organization chart should include position titles and 
reporting relationships. Employee names should not appear on the chart. 

Organizational Chart 7-30-21 Final 22 

Filename: Organizational Chart 7 30 21 Final 22.23.pdf Size: 104.3 kB 

Entry 13 School Calendar 

Completed Jul 27 2022 

Instructions for submitting School Calendar 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

If the charter school has a tentative calendar based on available information and guidance at the time, 
please submit with the August 1, 2022 submission. Charter schools must upload a final school calendar 
into the portal and may do so at any time but no later than September 15, 2022. 

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools 
“… unless the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.” 

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools also are required to submit school calendars that clearly 
indicate the start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or 
instructional days for each month. See an example of a calendar showing the requested information. 
Schools are encouraged to use a calendar template and ensure there is a monthly tally of instructional 
days. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

Filename: 22.23annual calendar 5.2022 PDF.pdf Size: 121.4 kB 

Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on School Website 

Completed Jul 28 2022 

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required 
to submit item 5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline 
Policy 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. 
Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual Report);[1] 
2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents; 
3. New York State School Report Card; 
4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents, 

NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY); 
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5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency 
Response Plan Memo; 

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and 
7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See NYSED Subject Matter List) 

[1] Each charter school is required to make the Annual Report publicly available by August 1 and to post 
on their respective charter school website. Each school should post an updated and complete version to 
include accountability data and financial statements that are not or may not be available until after the 
August deadline (i.e., Repost when financials have been submitted in November.) 

Form for Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on
School Website 

School Name: Charter School of Inquiry 
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and ALL instructional and non-instructional employees. 

Use of the 2021-2022 Annual Report Faculty/Staff roster template is required. Each of the data 
elements, with the exception of the Notes, are required, and use of the drop-down options, 
when provided, is also required. Reminders: Please use the notes section provided to add any 
additional information as deemed necessary. Failure to adhere to the guidelines and validations in the 
Staff Roster Template will result in a resubmission of a fully corrected roster. 

Please note the roster should include all staff employed any point from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022, 
including those employed on June 30th. 

Faculty and Staff Roster Annual Report 2022 9-6-22 

Filename: Faculty and Staff Roster Annual R Xd8WhIE.xlsx Size: 24.7 kB 

Optional Additional Documents to Upload (BOR) 
Incomplete 
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CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE 
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 

Additional Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  The 
accompanying additional information as listed in the table of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and is derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS.  In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 24, 2022 on our 
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that report 
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

October 24, 2022 
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CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Balance Sheets 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash 

Receivables (Note 2) 
Prepaid expenses 

$      3,693,095 
687,037 

9,418 
4,389,550 

$      3,413,387 
309,965 

4,491 
3,727,843 

Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 1,088,494 1,149,995 

Restricted cash 100,000 100,000 

$      5,578,044 $      4,977,838 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

$            31,559 
110,076 
319,444 
461,079 

$            21,326 
68,574 

269,009 
358,909 

Long-term debt (Note 5) 1,081,401 1,074,632 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 4,035,564 3,544,297 

$      5,578,044 $      4,977,838 

See accompanying notes.  3 



                        

                    

                                     

                                

                

                

                        

                        

                        

                

                    

                

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Statements of Activities 

For the years ended June 30, 2022 2021 

Support and revenue: 
Enrollment fees: 

Resident students 
Resident students with disabilities 

Contributions: 
Federal and state awards 
Paycheck Protection Program (Note 10) 

Interest and other income 
Total support and revenue 

$      3,772,026 
431,454 

1,223,408 
-

5,287 
5,432,175 

$      3,801,176 
149,865 

484,102 
435,923 

2,605 
4,873,671 

Expenses: 
Program expenses: 

Regular education 
Special education 
Other program 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 

Total expenses 

3,102,200 
572,767 
267,523 

998,418 
4,940,908 

2,338,038 
426,188 
233,091 

595,194 
3,592,511 

Change in net assets 491,267 1,281,160 

Net assets - beginning 3,544,297 2,263,137 

Net assets - ending $      4,035,564 $      3,544,297 

See accompanying notes.  4 



                 

                                                                                              

                                                                                                                    

              

                                                                

                                                                       

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                       

                                                                                      

                                                                                                       

                                                                              

                                                                          

                                                                                                       

                                                                              

                                                                              

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                   

                                                                        

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                   

                                                                                              

                                                                                                             

                                                                              

                                                      

                                                                        

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Number 
of Regular Special Other Management 

Positions Education Education Program and General Total 
Administrative personnel 6.9 $                       - $                       - $                       - $          580,759 $          580,759 
Instructional personnel 51.5 1,763,460 317,828 - - 2,081,288 
Non-instructional personnel 2.1 - - 134,614 - 134,614 
Total salaries 60.5 $       1,763,460 $          317,828 $          134,614 $          580,759 $       2,796,661 

Salaries $       1,763,460 $          317,828 $          134,614 $          580,759 $       2,796,661 
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 357,425 64,419 27,284 117,711 566,839 
Retirement 81,899 14,761 6,252 26,972 129,884 
Staff and student recruitment - - - 17,022 17,022 
Classroom supplies and materials 85,348 - - - 85,348 
Consultants 113,014 143,955 - - 256,969 
Field trips 21,601 - - - 21,601 
Insurance 31,611 1,976 1,976 3,951 39,514 
Interest 94,962 5,935 5,935 11,870 118,702 
Nursing services and supplies - - 50,991 - 50,991 
Office expense 31,369 1,961 1,961 3,921 39,212 
Other expenses 18,237 1,005 1,005 2,010 22,257 
Payroll processing - - - 89,117 89,117 
Professional fees - - - 103,232 103,232 
Repairs and maintenance 130,406 8,150 8,150 16,300 163,006 
Staff development 27,640 - - - 27,640 
Student activities - - 11,378 - 11,378 
Student testing and assessment 18,579 - - - 18,579 
Technology 122,226 - - - 122,226 
Telephone 5,374 336 336 672 6,718 
Transportation - - 5,200 - 5,200 
Utilities 59,201 3,700 3,700 7,400 74,001 

2,962,352 564,026 258,782 980,937 4,766,097 
Depreciation 139,848 8,741 8,741 17,481 174,811 

Total $       3,102,200 $          572,767 $          267,523 $          998,418 $       4,940,908 

See accompanying notes.  5 



                 
                                                                                            

                                                                                                                    

              

                                                                  

                                                                          

                                                                                                           
                                                                                                       

                                                                             
                                                                                                           
                                                                            
                                                                        
                                                                                                       
                                                                                    

                                                                                      
                                                                                                       
                                                                                                       
                                                                            
                                                                                                       

                                                                                                           
                                                                                                       
                                                                                                       
                                                                                           
                                                                                                           

                                                                            
                                                   
                                                                             

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Number 
of Regular Special Other Management 

Positions Education Education Program and General Total 
Administrative personnel 4.0 $                       - $                       - $                       - $         291,619 $         291,619 
Instructional personnel 44.8 1,349,985 220,366 - - 1,570,351 
Non-instructional personnel 3.0 - - 123,402 - 123,402 
Total salaries 51.8 $      1,349,985 $         220,366 $         123,402 $         291,619 $      1,985,372 

Salaries $      1,349,985 $         220,366 $         123,402 $         291,619 $      1,985,372 
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 280,316 41,031 29,251 55,657 406,255 
Retirement 66,390 9,718 6,928 13,182 96,218 
Staff and student recruitment - - - 6,650 6,650 
Classroom supplies and materials 23,278 - - - 23,278 
Consultants 52,695 139,611 - 18,974 211,280 
Field trips 1,100 - - - 1,100 
Insurance 28,452 1,778 1,778 3,556 35,564 
Interest 95,671 5,979 5,979 11,959 119,588 
Nursing services and supplies - - 36,241 - 36,241 
Office expense 15,735 983 983 1,967 19,668 
Other expenses 9,114 570 570 1,139 11,393 
Payroll processing - - - 62,162 62,162 
Professional fees - - - 99,779 99,779 
Repairs and maintenance 58,287 3,643 3,643 7,286 72,859 
Staff development 77,895 - - - 77,895 
Student activities - - 3,610 - 3,610 
Student testing and assessment 25,281 - - - 25,281 
Technology 83,725 - - - 83,725 
Telephone 4,287 268 268 536 5,359 
Transportation - - 1,950 - 1,950 
Utilities 35,849 2,241 2,241 4,481 44,812 

2,208,060 426,188 216,844 578,947 3,430,039 
Depreciation 129,978 - 16,247 16,247 162,472 

Total $      2,338,038 $         426,188 $         233,091 $         595,194 $      3,592,511 

See accompanying notes.  6 



                        

                                

              

                 

                    

                    

                       

                          

                    

                

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended June 30, 2022 2021 

Operating activities: 
Cash received from enrollment fees 
Cash received from contributions 
Cash received from other sources 
Payments to employees for services and benefits 
Payments to vendors and suppliers 
Interest paid 

$      4,245,625 
804,191 

5,287 
(3,442,949) 
(1,117,436) 

(118,702) 

$      3,903,038 
707,774 

3,280 
(2,473,176) 

(794,345) 
(119,588) 

Net operating activities 376,016 1,226,983 

Investing activities: 
Property and equipment expenditures (70,636) (112,670) 

Financing activities: 
Principal payments on long-term debt (25,672) (26,846) 

Net change in cash and restricted cash 279,708 1,087,467 

Cash and restricted cash - beginning 3,513,387 2,425,920 

Cash and restricted cash - ending $      3,793,095 $      3,513,387 

See accompanying notes.  7 



CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

School and Purpose: 

Charter School of Inquiry (the School) operates a charter 
school in the City of Buffalo, New York (the City) authorized by 
the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York. The School currently offers classes from kindergarten 
through sixth grade. The School is chartered through June 
2026 and continued operations are contingent upon approval 
of its charter renewal. 

Subsequent Events: 

Management has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 24, 2022, 
the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Cash: 

Cash in financial institutions potentially subjects the School to 
concentrations of credit risk, since it may exceed insured 
limits at various times throughout the year. The School 
complies with a requirement to hold no less than $100,000 in 
an escrow account to pay legal and audit expenses that would 
be associated with dissolution should it occur. This is included 
as restricted cash on the balance sheets as of June 30, 2022 
and 2021. 

Property and Equipment: 

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation.  Depreciation is provided over estimated asset 
service lives using the straight-line method. Maintenance and 
repairs are charged to operations as incurred; significant 
improvements are capitalized. 

Revenue Recognition: 

Enrollment Fees 
Enrollment fees are received from the public-school districts 
where the student resides.  The amount received each year 
from the resident district is generally the product of the 
approved operating expense per pupil and the full time 
equivalent enrollment of the students in the School residing in 
that district. The respective districts also reimburse the 
School for special education service based on approved 
applicable rates for the services provided. Revenues are 
recognized over the period the services are provided. The 
School generally invoices the resident district bimonthly and 
payment is due in 30 days. Enrollment fees received in 
advance are deferred and recognized when earned. The 
School’s enrollment fees are received primarily from the City 
School District. 

Contributions 
Contributions are reported at fair value at the date the pledge 
or award is received. Contributions are recorded as restricted 
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit 
their use. When a donor restriction expires, net assets with 
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net 
assets released from restrictions. Contributions received with 
donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same reporting 
period are shown as support without donor restrictions. 

Conditional contributions, primarily government awards, are 
recorded as revenue when the School meets requirements in 
compliance with specific agreements. Amounts received 
before the required conditions are met are reported as 
refundable advances on the accompanying balance sheets. 
These conditional contributions are subject to compliance and 
financial audits by the funding sources. Management believes 
no significant adjustments are necessary to recognized 
amounts. 

Receivables 
Receivables are stated at the amounts management expects 
to collect from outstanding balances. Balances that are 
outstanding after management has used reasonable 
collection efforts are written off through a charge to 
uncollectible receivables and a credit to accounts receivable. 
An allowance for doubtful accounts is considered unnecessary 
by management because all significant amounts deemed 
uncollectible are written off each year. 
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Income Taxes: 

The School is a 501(c)(3) School exempt from taxation under 
Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.  

Transportation and Food Services: 

The City School District provides the School with certain 
transportation and food services without cost.  The value of 
these services has not been recorded in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Functional Expense Allocation: 

The School’s costs of providing its various programs and 
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of functional expenses.  Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefited.  These costs include salaries, benefits, and 
payroll taxes, which are allocated based on estimates of time 
and effort, and depreciation, interest, and utilities which are 
allocated based on management’s estimate of program benefit. 

2. Receivables: 

2022 2021 
Enrollment fees $ 35,069 $ 77,214 
Contributions 651,968 232,751 

$ 687,037 $ 309,965 

Enrollment fees receivable as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 
include amounts withheld by the City School District for 
disputed rates of special education services provided by the 
School from 2016 through 2018 (Note 9). 

3.  Property and Equipment: 

2022 2021 
Building and improvements $ 1,499,218 $ 1,457,019 
Instructional and office equipment 507,962 436,851 

2,007,180 1,893,870 
Less accumulated depreciation 918,686 743,875 

$ 1,088,494 $ 1,149,995 

4.  Short-Term Borrowings: 

The School has available a $200,000 bank demand line of 
credit for working capital secured by essentially all business 
assets with interest payable at prime plus 0.5%.  The line is 
subject to the usual terms and conditions applied by the bank 
for working capital financing and is annually reviewed and 
renewed.  There were no borrowings on the line of credit at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

5.  Long-Term Debt - Lease Obligations: 

In 2015, the School entered into a series of purchase, lease, 
and sublease contracts with a developer to acquire and 
renovate its building, and currently subleases the premises 
from the developer under an absolute triple net lease.  The 
lease obligation and related assets have been capitalized for 
financial reporting purposes.  Consequently, building and 
improvements and instructional and office equipment include 
capitalized leased assets totaling $1,126,000.  

The capital lease term includes principal and interest 
payments at 10.8% and extends through June 2035 with five 
successive five-year renewal options. Principal amounts 
outstanding at June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $1,074,631 
and $1,095,958. The agreement contains a buyout provision 
whereby the School may terminate the lease in consideration 
of payment of the remaining balance on the mortgage note 
payable and any other amounts due the landlord, plus a 
buyout provision.  The buyout provision is based on a fixed 
schedule starting at $1,326,000 with an annual inflation factor 
escalation clause of 2%. 

In 2022, the School began to lease certain equipment under 
the terms of a noncancellable capital lease obligation with 
interest and principal payments at 6% through November 
2026. Principal amounts outstanding at June 30, 2022 totaled 
$38,329. 

Amortization of all leased assets included in depreciation 
expense was $56,300 and $51,300 for the years ended June 
30, 2022 and 2021, and net book value of leased assets was 
$704,600 and $718,200 at June 30, 2022 and 2021. 
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  Future minimum annual rentals to be paid for the capital 
leases are: 

2023 $ 148,500 
2024 148,500 
2025 148,500 
2026 165,828 
2027 160,053 

Thereafter 1,344,865 
2,116,246 

Amounts representing interest 1,003,286 
Net liability 1,112,960 
Less current portion 31,559 
Long-term portion $ 1,081,401 

6.  Pension Plans: 

The School participates in a multiple employer 401(k) pension 
plan covering essentially all employees. The School contributes 
5% of employees’ salaries to the plan, subject to certain 
limitations.  The School’s pension expense was $129,884 and 
$96,218 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

As of August 2022, the School also participates in the New York 
State Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) which is a cost-sharing 
multiple employer public employee retirement system. 

7.  Cash Flows Information: 

Noncash investing and financing activities excluded from the 
2022 statement of cash flows include equipment expenditures 
acquired through the issuance of long-term debt of $42,674. 

8. Financial Assets Available for Operating Purposes: 

The School obtains financial assets generally through 
enrollment fees and contributions. The financial assets are 
acquired throughout the year to help meet the School’s cash 
needs for general expenditures. If necessary, the School also 
has access to a $200,000 bank demand line of credit (Note 4). 

The School’s financial assets available within one year of the 
balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures consist of the following at June 30, 2022 and 
2021: 

2022 2021 
Cash available for operations $ 3,693,095 $ 3,413,387 
Receivables 687,037 309,965 

$ 4,380,132 $ 3,723,352 

9. Contingency: 

In 2019, an audit by the Office of the New York State 
Comptroller determined the City School District had provided 
incorrect special education rates for over a decade.  As a 
result, there is a dispute with the rate used for aid that passes 
through the City School District to the School for special 
education services.  

The City School District recouped approximately $25,600 in 
special education aid in the 2019-20 and 2020-21 school years 
through a reduction in the City School District’s payments for 
enrollment fees earned by the School.   To recover amounts 
withheld and pursuant to guidance, the School has submitted 
a State intercept to the New York State Education Department 
Commissioner and is following all administrative procedures 
to resolve the matter. Management believes the School will 
be successful in challenging the City School District’s 
recoupment of funds through the State administrative 
procedure, and all amounts withheld per above have been 
recognized as enrollment frees receivable at June 30, 2022 
and 2021 in the accompanying financial statements (Note 2). 

10.  Risks and Uncertainties due to COVID-19: 

On January 31, 2020, the United States Secretary of Health 
and Human Services (HHS) declared a public health 
emergency related to the global spread of coronavirus COVID-
19, and a pandemic was declared by the World Health 
Organization in February 2020. Efforts to fight the widespread 
disease included limiting or closing many businesses and all 
schools and resulted in a severe disruption of operations for 
many organizations. 

In July 2020, the School received a loan of $435,923 from the 
Small Business Administration (SBA) under the Paycheck 
Protection Program of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and 
Economic Security (CARES) Act in response to the pandemic. 
The School received SBA forgiveness in May 2021 and the 
proceeds have been recognized as contributions revenue in 
the accompanying 2021 statement of activities. 

The full extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the School’s 
operational and financial performance will depend on further 
developments, including the duration and spread of the 
outbreak, and its impact on schools, including its students and 
families, employees, and vendors, none of which can be 
predicted. 
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CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Additional Information 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title 

U.S. Department of Education 
Passed through New York State Education Department: 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 
Education Stabilization Fund: 

Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 
American Rescue Plan Elementary and Secondary School 

Emergency Relief Fund 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

1 Total Education Stabilization Fund - $1,024,990 

Assistance 
Listing 

 Number 

Grantor 
Number Expenditures 

84.010 
84.367 
84.424 

84.425D 

84.425U 

0021-22-5215 
0147-22-5215 
0204-22-5215 

5891-21-5215 

5880-21-5215 

$           164,102 
22,243 
12,073 

496,801 

528,189 

$        1,223,408 

1 

1 

See accompanying notes.  11 







Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

October 24, 2022 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the School’s 
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user of the report on compliance about the School’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal 
program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the School’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the School’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control 
over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.  However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 24, 2022 
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Charter School of Inquiry 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

2022 2021 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $  3,693,095  $  3,413,387 
Grants and contracts receivable 687,037 309,965 
Accounts receivables 9,418 4,491 
Prepaid Expenses                                     -                                     - 
Contributions and other receivables                                     -                                     - 
Other current assets                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                     4,389,550                     3,727,843 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net  $  1,088,494  $  1,149,995 
Restricted Cash                         100,000                         100,000 
Security Deposits                                     -                                     - 
Other Non-Current Assets                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS                     1,188,494                     1,249,995 

TOTAL ASSETS 5,578,044 4,977,838 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $  110,076  $  68,574 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits                         319,444                         269,009 
Current Portion of Loan Payable                           31,559                           21,326 
Due to Related Parties                                     -                                     - 
Refundable Advances                                     -                                     - 
Deferred Revenue                                     -                                     - 
Other Current Liabilities                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES                         461,079                         358,909 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year  $  1,081,401  $  1,074,632 
Deferred Rent                                     -                                     - 
Due to Related Party                                     -                                     - 
Other Long-Term Liabilities                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES                     1,081,401                     1,074,632 

TOTAL LIABILITIES                     1,542,480                     1,433,541 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted  $  4,035,564  $  3,544,297 
Temporarily restricted                                     -                                     - 
Permanently restricted                                     -                                     - 

TOTAL NET ASSETS                     4,035,564                     3,544,297 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS                     5,578,044                     4,977,838 



  
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Charter School of Inquiry 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30 

 Unrestricted
2022 

 Temporarily 
Restricted

 Total
2021
 Total 

OPERATING REVENUE
 State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed
 State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED
 State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue
Federal Grants

 State and City Grants
 Other Operating Income
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

 $  3,772,026 
                     431,454 
                                  - 
                  1,223,408 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                  5,426,888 

 $                               - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

 $  3,772,026 
                     431,454 
                                  - 
                  1,223,408 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                  5,426,888 

 $  3,801,176 
                     149,865 
                                  - 
                     920,025 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                  4,871,066 

EXPENSES 
Program Services

 Regular Education
 Special Education
 Other Programs

Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising
TOTAL EXPENSES

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income

 Contributions and Grants
 Fundraising Support
 Investments
Donated Services
Other Support and Revenue

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

 Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal of Assets 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

 $  

 $  

 $

 $  

2,971,794 
                     564,617 
                     259,373 
                  3,795,784 
                  1,145,124 
                                  - 
                  4,940,908 

                     485,980 

5,287 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                          5,287 

                               - 

                     491,267 

3,544,297 
                                  - 

 $

 $

 $

 $

                               - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

                                  - 

                               - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 

                               - 

                                  - 

                               - 
                                  - 

 $  

 $  

 $

 $  

2,971,794 
                     564,617 
                     259,373 
                  3,795,784 
                  1,145,124 
                                  - 
                  4,940,908 

                     485,980 

5,287 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                          5,287 

                               - 

                     491,267 

3,544,297 
                                  - 

 $  

 $  

 $

 $  

2,279,751 
                     422,545 
                     229,448 
                  2,931,744 
                     660,767 
                                  - 
                  3,592,511 

                  1,278,555 

2,605 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                                  - 
                          2,605 

                               - 

                  1,281,160 

2,263,137 
                                  - 

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR  $  4,035,564  $                               -  $  4,035,564  $  3,544,297 



                                                                       
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      

Charter School of Inquiry 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2022 2021 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets  $                                                 -  $                                                 - 
Revenues from School Districts 4,245,625 3,903,038 
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation - -
Grants Receivable - -
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues                                                     -                                                     - 
Prepaid Expenses                                                     -                                                     - 
Accounts Payable                                   (1,117,436)                                       (794,345) 
Accrued Expenses                                   (3,442,949)                                   (2,473,176) 
Accrued Liabilities                                                     -                                                     - 
Contributions and fund-raising activities                                        804,191                                        707,774 
Miscellaneous sources                                             5,287                                             3,280 
Deferred Revenue                                                     - 
Interest payments                                       (118,702)                                       (119,588) 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  $  376,016  $  1,226,983 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES  $  $ 
Purchase of equipment                                         (70,636)                                       (112,670) 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  $  (70,636)  $  (112,670) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES  $  $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt                                         (25,672)                                         (26,846) 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  $  (25,672)  $  (26,846) 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  $  279,708  $  1,087,467 
Cash at beginning of year                                     3,513,387                                     2,425,920 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $  3,793,095  $  3,513,387 



      

                    
                  
                    

 

 

Charter School of Inquiry 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2022 2021 

No. of Positions Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special Other Education 

Education 
Total Fundraising 

Supporting Services 
Management and 

General 
Total Total 

Personnel Services Costs
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes
Retirement
Management Company Fees
Legal Service
Accounting / Audit Services
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services
Building and Land Rent / Lease
Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Supplies / Materials
Equipment / Furnishings
Staff Development
Marketing  / Recruitment
Technology
Food Service 

6.90
51.50

2.10
                  60.50 

 $
                           - 
           1,763,460 
                           - 
           1,763,460 
               357,425 
                 81,899 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
               131,251 

                           - 
               130,406 
                 31,611 
                 64,575 
                 85,348 
                           - 
                 27,640 
                           - 
               122,226 
                           - 

 $
                           - 
               317,828 
                           - 
               317,828 
                 64,419 
                 14,761 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
               144,960 

                           - 
                   8,150 
                   1,976 
                   4,036 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 

 $
                           - 
                           - 
               134,614 
               134,614 
                 27,284 
                   6,251 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                 51,996 

                           - 
                   8,150 
                   1,976 
                   4,036 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 
                           - 

 $
                             - 
              2,081,288 
                 134,614 
              2,215,902 
                 449,128 
                 102,911 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                 328,207 

                             - 
                 146,706 
                   35,563 
                   72,647 
                   85,348 
                             - 
                   27,640 
                             - 
                 122,226 
                             - 

 $
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

 $
                 580,759 
                             - 
                             - 
                 580,759 
                 117,711 
                   26,972 

                   22,522 
                   80,035 
                   91,802 

                   16,300 
                     3,951 
                     8,072 
                             - 
                             - 
                   17,022 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

 $
                 580,759 
                             - 
                             - 
                 580,759 
                 117,711 
                   26,972 
                             - 
                   22,522 
                   80,035 
                   91,802 

                             - 
                   16,300 
                     3,951 
                     8,072 
                             - 
                             - 
                   17,022 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

 $
                 580,759 
              2,081,288 
                 134,614 
              2,796,661 
                 566,839 
                 129,883 
                             - 
                   22,522 
                   80,035 
                 420,009 

                             - 
                 163,006 
                   39,514 
                   80,719 
                   85,348 
                             - 
                   44,662 
                             - 
                 122,226 
                             - 

 $ 
                 291,619 
              1,570,351 
                 123,402 
              1,985,372 
                 406,255 
                   96,218 
                             - 
                   25,375 
                   74,404 
                 211,280 

                             - 
                   72,859 
                   35,564 
                   50,171 
                   23,278 
                             - 
                   77,895 
                     6,650 
                   83,725 
                             - 

Student Services
Office Expense
Depreciation
OTHER

                 40,180 
                 31,369 
               139,848 
                 94,962 

                           - 
                   1,961 
                   8,741 
                   5,935 

                 16,578 
                   1,961 
                   8,741 
                   5,935 

                   56,758 
                   35,291 
                 157,330 
                 106,832 

                             - 
                             - 
                             - 
                             - 

                             - 
                     3,922 
                   17,481 
                   11,870 

                             - 
                     3,922 
                   17,481 
                   11,870 

                   56,758 
                   39,213 
                 174,811 
                 118,702 

                   31,941 
                   19,668 
                 162,472 
                 229,384 

Total Expenses  $  3,102,200  $  572,767  $  267,522  $  3,942,489  $  -  $  998,419  $  998,419  $  4,940,908  $  3,592,511 











 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
     

 

      

    

     

     

     
  

 
 

 
 

    
 

 
  

November 1, 2022 

New York State Education Department 
Charter School Office 

Re: Charter School of Inquiry 

Dear New York State Education Department representative: 

Below pertains to Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents: 

• Advisory and/or Management letter – not applicable, no management letter issued 

• Federal Single Audit – included with audit 

• CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report - not applicable 

• Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school - attached 

• Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations - not 
applicable, no management letter issued 

Very truly yours, 

Lisa M. Kirisits 

Lisa M. Kirisits, CPA, MBA 
Managing Partner 









































































































 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

   

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CSI Organizational Charter 2021-2022 

Board of 

Trustees 

Director of 

Student Support 

Services (Social 

emotional 

support, 

behavioral 

intervention, T-

CRS data 

collection, 

Responsive 

Classroom 

support and 

oversight, DASA 

Coordinator) 

Director of 

Recruitment and 

Family Support 

(Recruitment, 

admissions, 

family outreach, 

transportation, 

student data, 

Family Support 

Taskforce) 

Director of 

Operations 

(Facilities, 

finance, health 

and safety, 

compliance, HR, 

FERPA, FOIL, 

McKenny Vento 

Liaison) 

Head of 

School 

Associate 

Principal 

(Day-to-day 

operations and 

systems, 

supervision and 

evaluation of 

instructional 

staff, school 

culture and 

climate, 

extracurricular 

activities, 

Africana Infusion 

Taskforce and 

Community 

Partnership 

Taskforce) 

Director of 

Curriculum and 

Instruction 

(Curriculum 

development, 

monitoring scope 

and sequence, 

staff professional 

development, 

student-led 

investigations, 

instructional 

strategies, key 

design elements, 

coaching and 

mentoring, 

Curriculum 

Committee, 

rubric 

development) 

Director of 

Special 

Education and 

RTI Services (SST, 

408s, Section 504 

Plans, CSE 

referrals, testing, 

progress 

monitoring, sped. 

schedules, data 

points, related 

services) 

Director of Data 

and Assessment 

(Assessment 

data, benchmark 

assessments, 

progress 

monitoring, 

checkpoint 

assessments, 

consolidated 

status reports, 

Consolidated 

Proficiency 

Report, Growth 

Reports) 

Supervises 

social 

workers 

Supervises 

Recruitment 

Team and 

in-house 

translators 

Supervises Building 

Engineer, 

custodians, 

food service, 

nursing services, 

clerical services, 

service vendors 

Supervises 

and 

evaluates 

all 

classroom 

teachers 

Supervises and 

evaluates all 

teaching assistants 

and substitute 

teachers 

Supervises staff 

implementation 

of curriculum, 

instruction, and 

key design 

elements; 

oversees work 

of Curriculum 

Committee 

Supervises 

Literacy 

Coach 

Supervises 

ENL 

teacher(s) 

Supervises special 

education and RTI 

teachers 

Supervises staff 

adherence to 

assessment and 

accountability 

plans; evaluates 

vendor 

assessments and 

providers 






	Structure Bookmarks
	CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION. 




